
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, May 06, 2019 - 6:00 PM 

 
 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Laney J. Harris 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (CCD) 

2. Proclamation presented to City Clerk Heather Soyars for “Municipal Clerks Week” May 6-

12, 2019.  (CCD) 

CONSENT 

3. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting April 15, 2019. (CCD) 

4. Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to submit a transportation 

alternatives reimbursable grant application to the Arkansas Highway Transportation 

Department (AHTD) Arkansas Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) to extend East 

50th Street sidewalks. (PWD)  

5. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a construction contract with 

Tatum Excavating Company, Inc. (TEC) for U of A Way Street Reconstruction. (PWD) 

6. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase five 2020 Ford Police 

Interceptor Patrol Vehicles. (TAPD) 

REGULAR 

7. Adopt an Ordinance amending the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances, Solid 

Waste Ordinance Sec. 22-6 – Billing of multifamily residences. (PWD) Public Works 

Director Tyler Richards 

Emergency clause is requested.  An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. 

(Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

8. Adopt an Ordinance to rezone property located at 7504 E. 9th Street from R-1 Rural 

residential to R-3 Low-density residential. (PWD-Planning) (This agenda item 

recommended for approval by the Planning Commission) City Planner Mary Beck 

The applicant requests an emergency clause to begin renovations.  An emergency clause 

requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds 

vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

1



 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, May 20, 2019 

ADJOURN 

 

 

2019 City Calendar 

 

Gateway Farmer’s Market – Every Tuesday, Thursday and Saturday 

Auditorium Fundraiser - Friday, May 10, 2019 

14th Annual Car Show - Friday, May 10, 2019 - Saturday, May 11, 2019 

9th Annual RailFest - Saturday, May 11, 2019 

Hungers No Game 5K/Fun Run - Saturday, May 18, 2019 

Bright Star Baptist Church Anniversary Homecoming -  

Saturday, May 25, 2019 

Sparks in the Park - Saturday, June 29, 2019 

  

2



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

GENDA TITLE: Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service 

Awards. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: 05/06/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk  

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Presentation of employee service awards.  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Presentation of employee service awards. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: Employee Service Awards List.  

 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards 

 

NAME Department Years of Service 

Barbara Baker TWU 15 

John Bunting TWU 10 

Jeffrey Shaw TWU 5 

 

3



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting April 15, 2019. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: 05/06/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 

4



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, April 15, 2019 - 6:00 PM 

 
 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Assistant Mayor Linda Teeters, Ward 2 Director 

Laney J. Harris, Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Travis Odom, Ward 5 

Director Barbara S. Miner, and Ward 6 Director Terri Peavy. 

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Dr. Kenny Haskin, City Attorney George Matteson, City 

Clerk Heather Soyars and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens.  

Pledge of Allegiance lead by Boy Scout Troop 8 of the 1st Presbyterian Church Texarkana, 

Arkansas.  

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Proclamation Supporting City’s participation in the National Historic Preservation Month 

presented to City Planner Mary Beck.  

CONSENT 

 Motion to approve the Consent Agenda made by Director Odom, Seconded by Assistant 

Mayor Teeters.  

 The motion carried unanimously, and the Mayor declared the Consent Agenda approved.  

The item approved was: 

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting April 1, 2019. (CCD) 

REGULAR 

3. Resolution No. 2019-15 authorizing the City Manager to contract with Sanitation Solutions 

to provide solid waste disposal (landfill) services to the City. (PWD)  

 Public Works Director Tyler Richards said the City’s landfill contract with Waste 

Management expires on April 30
th

.  Due to this, the City advertised for request for proposals 

(RFP) for solid waste disposal services on March 3, 2019. He said three proposals were 

submitted:  Sanitation Solutions Inc. – $16.00 a ton for the duration of the five-year contract 

inclusive of fuel surcharges, Waste Management of Texas, Inc. – Option I: $35.50 a ton for 

the duration of the five-year contract inclusive of fuel surcharges.  Option II: $33.50 a ton 

with a $1.00 increase annually, and Waste Corporation of Arkansas, LLC - $25.00 a ton 

inclusive of fuel surcharges with a 2% increase annually.  Public Works Director Tyler 

Richards said based on the results staff recommended to the Solid Waste Committee on 

March 25, 2019, the landfill contract would be awarded to Sanitation Solutions and the new 

rate would save the City approximately $1.08 million during the life of the contract when 

5



 

compared to the new rates quoted from Waste Management as they were the City’s current 

provider.  He said the Solid Waste Committee voted unanimously to submit Sanitation 

Solutions Inc’s, proposal to the Board of Directors for approval.  

Director Harris said five years ago the same issue was brought up and there was a company 

out of El Dorado.  He said he called Sanitation Solutions last Friday to ask what the 

maximum amount would be, but he was told that was not handled from that venue.  Director 

Harris asked how many more miles it would be to drive to this location.    

Public Works Director Tyler Richards said the commercial and residential haulers would 

have the same rate.   

Assistant Mayor Teeters said El Dorado did send in a bid and it was the seconded lowest 

rate with a 2% increase per year.    

Director Peavy said Sanitation Solutions did not have a yearly increase.  

Public Works Director Tyler Richards said yes.  

Director Miner asked what the mileage was.  

Public Works Director Tyler Richards said round trip was 170 miles and it was an additional 

118 miles from New Boston.   

 Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Peavy, Seconded by Director Miner.   

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy.  

4. Resolution No. 2019-16 authorizing the City Manager to amend the residential hauler 

contracts with Edmondson’s Trash Service and Richardson Waste Inc. (PWD)  

 Public Works Director Tyler Richards said with the lowest rate being submitted by 

Sanitation Solutions Inc. the City’s residential hauler contracts would need to be amended.  

He said Section (8) stated “Residential garbage is currently transported to and disposed of in 

accordance with the City's disposal contract with Western Waste Industries utilizing the 

New Boston Landfill” and it would be replaced with “Residential garbage is currently 

transported to and disposed of in accordance with the landfill under contract with the City.” 

 Director Harris asked if the haulers would receive an increase.  

 Public Works Director Tyler Richards said they were discussing it with the haulers right 

now but lumping the residential in with the commercial haulers gave them a big savings.   

 Director Harris asked if this resolution were amending any money with the haulers.  

 Public Works Director Tyler Richards said this resolution had nothing to do with money for 

the haulers.   

 Assistant Mayor Teeters asked if the haulers had the option to use the transfer station.  

 Public Works Director Tyler Richards said yes. 

 Motion to adopt the resolution made by Assistant Mayor Teeters, Seconded by Director 

Odom.  

6



 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy.  

5. Ordinance No. 9-2019 Amending the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances, 

Solid Waste Ordinance Sec. 22-28 – Disposal of Commercial Solid Waste, Sec. 22-30 – 

Proof of Landfill Disposal by Commercial Haulers and Sec. 22-31 - Penalty for Disposal of 

Solid Waste at a Landfill Not Under Contract with the City. (PWD)  

 Public Works Director Tyler Richards said the ordinance would need to be amended as 

such:   

 Sec. 22-28. - Disposal of commercial solid waste. 

 All commercial collection contractors collecting garbage, trash or other solid waste within 

the city shall deliver said waste to the landfill under contract with the City and the disposal 

fee shall be the same rate provided in the City’s landfill contract for all commercial 

collection contractors.  

 All commercial collection contractors shall charge commercial establishments the 

commercial collection rates provided for herein and any commercial collection contractor 

who fails to charge said rates shall forfeit his right to collect and haul garbage, trash or other 

solid waste from commercial establishments and his license shall be revoked.  

 Sec. 22-30. – Proof of landfill disposal by commercial haulers. 

 All Commercial collection contractors collecting garbage, trash or other solid waste within 

the city shall provide the City with proof of waste being disposed at the landfill under 

contract with the City.  Proof shall be in the form of landfill bills or tonnage tickets from the 

landfill operator. 

 Sec. 22-31 – Penalty for disposal of solid waste at a landfill not under contract with the 

City.                                                                             

 Any commercial collection contractor collecting garbage, trash or other solid waste that did 

not dispose of said waste at the landfill under contract with the City shall lose its privilege to 

collect solid waste within the City. 

 Director Harris asked if the ordinance applied to any residents wanting to get rid of their 

own waste.  

 City Manager Dr. Kenny Haskin said any resident could use the landfill in New Boston at 

their own expense.     

 Motion to read the ordinance the first time in abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor 

Teeters, Seconded by Director Peavy.   

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Directory Odom, Directory Miner, Director Peavy.   

 The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

 Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Odom, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Teeters. 

7



 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy.   

 The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

 Motion to further suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in 

abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Teeters, Seconded by Director Miner. 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

 The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the third and final time in abbreviated 

form. 

 Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Odom. 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

 The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was adopted. 

 The City’s landfill contract with Waste Management expires on April 30, 2019 and requires 

an emergency clause. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of the board 

and was valid only if there were a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. 

Amend 7) 

 Motion to approve the emergency clause made by Director Odom, Seconded by Director 

Peavy. 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

 The emergency clause was adopted 7-0. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

 Vicky Ram, 1011 Grape, wanted the Board to know she wanted to try and fix the building 

on the property before it was placed on the condemnation list.    

 Director Harris said he had requested pot holes in his ward to be fixed.  He showed a picture 

of a patch truck and a roller; he thought the Street Department did not have the right tools or 

equipment to do the job.  Director Harris said the grass in his ward was not being cut in a 

timely manner and the grass around Jones Creek was high.  

ADJOURN 

 Motion to adjourn made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Peavy. 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

 The meeting adjourned at 6:30 PM. 

  

8



 

APPROVAL of the minutes on this 6
th

 day of May, 2019. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

 

9



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to 

submit a transportation alternatives reimbursable grant application 

to the Arkansas Highway Transportation Department (AHTD) 

Arkansas Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) to extend 

East 50
th

 Street sidewalks. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler 

Richards 

AGENDA DATE: 05/06/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other

☐: 

 

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: To submit a Transportation Alternatives Grant Application to 

AHTD. 

EMERGENCY 

CLAUSE: 

This item will be approved by a resolution; therefore, it will not 

need an emergency clause. 

SUMMARY: The City proposes to submit a Transportation Alternatives 

reimbursable grant application in the amount of $98,247.66 to the 

Arkansas Highway Transportation Department (AHTD) 

Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) to extend East 50
th

 

Street sidewalks.  The City proposes to utilize a cash match in the 

amount of $24,561.92 for a total project cost of $122,809.58.  The 

project proposed consists of extending East 50
th

 Street sidewalks 

from Pinecrest Circle to Parkway Drive.  The extension project 

consists of the construction of approximately 2,800 linear feet of 

5’-0” wide concrete sidewalk.  

The match for this project will be budgeted in the Public Works 

FY2020 Budget Cycle.   

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $122,809.58 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$24,561.92 

10



RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Project Construction Estimate and Location Map. 

 

11



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE WILLINGNESS 

OF THE CITY OF TEXARKANA 
TO UTILIZE FEDERAL-AID TRANSPORTATION 

ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM FUNDS 

  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, understands 

Federal-aid Transportation Alternatives Program Funds are available at 80% federal participation 

and 20% local match to develop or improve the extension of East 50
th

 Street sidewalks from 

Pinecrest Circle to Parkway Drive; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, understands that Federal-aid Funds are 

available for this project on a reimbursable basis, requiring work to be accomplished and proof 

of payment prior to actual monetary reimbursement; and 

WHEREAS, this project, using federal funding, will be open and available for use by the 

general public and maintained by the applicant for the life of the project; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that: 

SECTION I:  the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, will participate in accordance with its 

designated responsibility, including maintenance of this project. 

SECTION II:  the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute all 

appropriate agreements and contracts necessary to expedite the construction of the above stated 

project. 

SECTION III:  the Board of Directors pledges its full support and hereby authorizes the 

Arkansas State Highway and Transportation Department to initiate action to implement this 

project. 
  

12



PASSED AND APPROVED this 6
th

 day of May, 2019. 

 

 
  

__________________________ 
Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
  

 
__________________________ 
Heather Soyars, City Clerk 
 

 

 

APPROVED: 
  

 
______________________________________ 
George M. Matteson, City Attorney 
 

 

13



Project Construction Estimate

Quantity Units Unit Cost Item Cost

1 1.00 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00

2 1.00 LS $1,672.50 $1,672.50

3 1.00 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00

4 1,556.00 SY $60.00 $93,360.00

5 4.00 EA $432.00 $1,728.00

6 50.00 LF $20.00 $1,000.00

7 1,867.00 SY $3.24 $6,049.08

8 1.00 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00

9 1.00 LS $11,000.00 $11,000.00

10 $0.00

11 $0.00

12 $0.00

13 $0.00

14 $0.00

15 $0.00

16 $0.00

17 $0.00

18 $0.00

19 $0.00

20 $0.00

Total Estimated Construction Cost 

Requested TAP Funds 

Local Match (20% minimum) 

% Federal (80% maximum) 80%

$122,809.58

$98,247.66

$24,561.92

What is the source of your matching funds?

(i.e. sales tax, turnback, bonds, etc.)

City Budget - Public Works Department Funds - State 

Turnback

ARKANSAS

TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM (TAP)

City of Texarkana, Arkansas

East 50th Street Sidewalk Extensions

Item of Work

PROJECT APPLICATION -- FFY 2019

Mobilization 

SWPPP

Site Preparation

Install 5' Wide Concrete Sidewalks (4" Thick)

Type 2 Curb Ramp or Landing

12" Wide Crosswalk Striping (Thermoplastic)

SOD

Testing Allowance

Engineering

Project Name:

Sponsor:

Page 1 of 1   

14



Text

U OF A WAY

E 50TH ST

SA
ND

ER
SO

N 
LN

EVERG RE EN
DR

FO
UR

ST
AT

ES
FA

IR
PK

W
Y

E 46TH ST
SA

ND
ER

SO
N 

LN

E 39TH ST
E 39TH ST

WOODLINE DR
BE

LM
ON

T A
VE

E 37TH ST

I-30

E 40TH ST

E 47TH ST

TIMBERLINE DR

ARKANSAS BLVD

PIN
SO

N 
DR

WOODWAYDR

E 42ND ST

E 48TH ST
E 48TH ST

E C
AS

TL
ER

ID
GE

 D
R

MI
ND

EN
 AV

E

CH
AR

LE
ST

ON
 ST

TR
INITY

 BLVD

PA
RK

W
AY

 D
R

SU
NB

UR
Y D

R

MA
RK

W
OO

D 
DR

PA
RK

LA
ND

 D
R

RI
DG

EW
AY

 D
R

FE
RN

W
OO

D 
ST

LA
W

ND
AL

E D
R

GL
EN

LE
A D

R

FA
IR

 G
RO

UN
D 

RD

OA
KH

ILL
 D

R
E 44TH ST

E

43RD ST

I-4
9

E 54TH ST

PIN
E

CRESTCIR

MO
UN

T O
LIV

E D
R

E. 50th Street Sidewalks (from Pinecrest to Circle Parkway Dr.)
Location Map

2,800' x 5' Concrete Sidewalk

Legend
Proposed Trail/Sidewalk
TAP Grant 2015 Sidewalks
TAP Grant 2016 Sidewalks
Existing_Trails

Ü 0 370 740
Feet

15



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 

construction contract with Tatum Excavating Company, Inc. (TEC) for 

U of A Way Street Reconstruction. (PWD) 

AGENDA DATE: 05/06/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: Adopt a Resolution to Enter into a Construction Contract with TEC for 

U of A Way Street Reconstruction. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: This item will be approved by a resolution; therefore, it will not need an 

emergency clause. 

SUMMARY: A resolution for the award of the construction contract to TEC, Inc. in 

the amount of six hundred seventy-one thousand, seven hundred sixty-

six dollars and ninety cents ($671,766.90) for U of A Way Street 

Reconstruction with a contingency in the amount three hundred twenty-

two thousand, nine hundred sixty dollars and twenty cents 

($322,960.20). 

On Tuesday April 9th, 2019 a bid opening was conducted at City Hall 

for the referenced project. Six qualified bids were received that met the 

bidding requirements. A.L. Franks Engineering reviewed the bids and 

found no errors in the submission. The low bid by TEC, Inc. is well 

under the budget amount of $1,000,000. A bid tabulation is further 

provided of the three low bids and summarized below:  

TEC, Inc.                          $671,766.90 

Stan Excavating                $691,060.73 

Contech Contractors         $759,652.06 

TEC, Inc. is licensed in the State of Arkansas and is located in 

Texarkana, Texas. TEC, Inc. is very experienced and capable to 

complete the project. TEC is registered with Sams.gov with DUNS 

#107295826 and Cage #0X653.  

Award of this contract to TEC, Inc. plus a contingency meets all bidding 

requirements. Funds were budgeted and are available for the award of 

this contract in the Streets Capital Outlay Fund and included in the EDA 

16



Grant Award approved with Resolution No. 2016-60. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $994,727.10 ($671,766.90 Bid + $322,960.20 contingency) 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $1,150,000.00 ($1,000.00 EDA Grant Award and $150,000 Stormwater 

Reserve) 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Bid Tabulation, TEC Bid Proposal, Sign-In Sheet, 

Engineer’s Recommendation Letter, and Resolution No. 2016-60 

Accepting and Allocating Funding for U of A Way. 

 

 

  

 

17



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 WHEREAS, after advertisement, a low bid in the amount of $671,766.90 was 

submitted by TEC, Inc., the scheduled reconstruction of U of A Way; and 

 WHEREAS, funds for such construction are available through that EDA Grant 

described in Resolution 2016-60; and    

WHEREAS, after application of the above expense, additional EDA Grant funds 

remain available, thus permitting the inclusion of a contingency of $322,960.20 for 

further possible reconstruction and additional extension of said street, which are hereby 

allocated, but remain subject to applicable Purchasing Policy and law as relates to 

distribution; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the FY2019 Budget to account for such 

expense; and   

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend Board approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas, that (i) the City Manager is authorized to enter into a 

construction contract with TEC, Inc., for the purposes and in the amount set forth above; 

(ii) the allocation of additional funds is approved, subject to the conditions above; and 

(iii) the FY2019 Budget is amended accordingly.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6
th

 day of May, 2019. 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase five 2020 

Ford Police Interceptor Patrol Vehicles. (TAPD) 

AGENDA DATE: 05/06/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Police 

PREPARED BY: Capt. Bobby Jordan 

REQUEST: Per the Cities Purchasing Policy, this purchase request requires board 

approval due to the cost.  Arkansas Statute 14-58-104 precludes the 

necessity of obtaining 3 competitive bids when the fleet vehicle price 

does not exceed the price awarded by the Office of State Procurement on 

this vehicle. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Police vehicles are an absolute necessity to provide police services to the 

citizens of Texarkana.  Most of the patrol vehicles now in service have in 

excess of 100,000 miles, many over 150,000, and have become a 

maintenance liability to the City of Texarkana.  As importantly, perhaps 

a civil liability to the City because many of these vehicles have safety 

equipment features that no longer function such as seat belts and air bags 

or sensors.  The current fleet of vehicles must be replaced. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $176,100.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $100,000.00 Capital Outlay in the 2019 PD Budget 

$63,700.00 Sell of 8 – 2012 Dodge Chargers 

$12,400.00 Police Reserve/Insurance Turnback (13009) Account #31967 

Total: $176,100.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

See Above 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

With Board Approval the PD will set in motion a five year plan to 

update its entire fleet of marked police units by replacing 20% of its 

dilapidated patrol fleet per year.  According to Ford Motor Co. the 

purchase of hybrid vehicles will reduce fuel costs to the city by an 

estimated $3,500.00 to $5,500.00 per year (per vehicle) as Hybrids are 

40% more efficient in fuel costs alone.  Ford estimates that due to the 

electric motor braking function “regenerative braking” of the Hybrid 

45



Vehicles that brake components will last the life of the vehicle.  

Combining these incentives and a 3 year 36,000 mile bumper to bumper 

warranty and a 5 year 60,0000 mile drivetrain warranty in contrast to the 

current annual maintenance costs, the overall cost to the city could be 

reduced to as much as $10,000 per year per vehicle as it is not unusual to 

see some of our per vehicle maintenance costs run $5,000.00 to 

$6,000.00 a year for an older car.  The absence of maintaining an aging 

fleet of patrol vehicles, combined with the increased savings in 

operational costs and new vehicle warranties alone will help offset the 

costs of this fleet replacement program 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Purchase Request Form, and Hybrid Bid 

 

46



RESOLUTION NO.____ 

 WHEREAS, in connection with a five-year plan developed by the Police Department to 

update an aging, and increasingly maintenance intensive vehicle fleet, the Police Department 

requests authority to acquire five 2020 Ford Police Interceptor Patrol Vehicles from McLarty 

Ford for a total cost of $176,100.00 (being $35,220.00 per vehicle); and 

 WHEREAS, the acquisition of these vehicles is estimated to result in combined annual 

savings of up to $10,000.00 per vehicle; and 

 WHEREAS, funds are available as follows:  $100,000.00, Capital Outlay in the 2019 

Police Department budget; $63,700.00, sale of eight 2012 Dodge Chargers; and $12,400.00, 

Police Reserve/Insurance Turnback; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that (i) the City Manager is authorized to enter into an agreement or take 

such other action as is necessary to acquire the patrol vehicles described above for the amount 

and from the funding sources so indicated; and (ii) the FY 2019 budget is hereby amended as 

necessary for such expense.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6
th

 day of May, 2019.   

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

47



48



49



50



51



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: An Ordinance Amending the Solid Waste Ordinance Sec. 22-6 – Billing 

of multifamily residences. (PWD) 

AGENDA DATE: 05/06/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: Amendment to Sec. 22-6 Billing of Multifamily Residences. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: This item will require an emergency clause. 

SUMMARY: Currently City ordinance allows for vacancies to submitted by multi-

family units. Over the last three years allowing the vacancies have cost 

the City and the Haulers a combined $279,807.92. 

The vacancies are based on the honor system and in reviewing the 

accounts City staff found the numbers being submitted to be inaccurate. 

The properties generate the same or more waste notwithstanding a 

decrease in declared occupancy.  

The proposed amendment is to prevent abuse, streamline the billing 

process for multi-family, master meter properties, and reflect the realities 

of what the study found.  It is for this reason City staff is requesting to 

amend the ordinance as such: 

o Sec. 22-6. – Billing of multifamily residences. 

Item (c) of this section shall be reworded as below: 

(c) Multifamily owners whose water is supplied by a master meter 

while under construction for demolition, major remodel or repairs 

will not be billed refuse service for the apartments listed on the 

building permit. The Public Works Department will issue a 

temporary hold on refuse charges based on the number of units 

under construction that are permitted. Absent a temporary hold as 

contemplated by this provision, the garbage disposal fee for a multi 

family residence whose water is supplied by a master meter shall be 

calculated in accordance with section 22-6 (a).  

The following items shall be removed from ordinance: 

(d) If the Texarkana water and sewer system does not receive a 

certification of occupancy prior to the date established for such 

52



certification, then the water and sewer system is hereby directed to 

bill the owner as if the apartments were fully occupied.  

(e) Persons who violate the provisions of this section or who give false 

certifications regarding occupancy shall be subject to the penalties in 

section 22-43.  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $0.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance. 

 

 

  

 

53



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 22-6 OF 

THE CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS, CODE 

OF ORDINANCES AS RELATES TO SOLID 

WASTE BILLING CALCULATION METHOD 

FOR MULTI-FAMILY STRUCTURES 

UTILIZING A MASTER WATER METER; 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, Section 22-6 of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of 

Ordinances (the “Code”) currently sets out the method solid waste disposal fees are 

calculated for multi-family residences utilizing a master water meter (generally being a 

method in which the owners of the structures report of the number of occupied or 

unoccupied units each month and, upon such reporting, the total solid waste disposal 

amount due is calculated); and 

WHEREAS, upon investigation, it is believed that instances of unreported 

occupancy may exist from time-to-time, and in any event, it is generally found that, 

historically, despite declarations of decreased occupancy in a multi-family residence 

served by a master meter, solid waste at such property generated rarely, if ever decreases; 

and 

WHEREAS, a decrease in declared occupancy with no corresponding decrease in 

solid waste generated results in additional solid waste disposal costs that are absorbed by 

the City and/or those residential solid waste haulers engaged by the City; and  

WHEREAS, in order to prevent abuse, reflect the found realities of solid waste 

generation in such situations, and more accurately allocate cost incurred, it is necessary to 

amend Section 22-6 of the Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend such amendment;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas, that: 

 

54



SECTION 1.  Section 22.6(c) of the Code is deleted, and the following is 

substituted therefore:  

Section 22-6. – Billing of multifamily residences. 

(c) Multifamily owners whose water is supplied by a master meter while under  

 construction for demolition, major remodel or repairs, will not be billed refuse 

 service for the apartments listed on the building permit. The Public Works 

 Department will issue a temporary hold on refuse charges based on the number of 

 units under construction that are permitted. Absent a temporary hold as 

 contemplated by this provision, the garbage disposal fee for a multi family 

 residence whose water is supplied by a master meter shall be calculated in 

 accordance with section 22-6 (a).  

 SECTION 2.   Sections 22-6(d) & (e) of the Code are deleted.   

 SECTION 3.   This ordinance being necessary for the preservation of the public 

peace, health and safety, and specifically, but without limitation, to minimize any further 

incurrence of unnecessary expense to the City or its residential solid waste haulers, an 

emergency is therefore declared to exist; and this ordinance shall be in full force and 

effect upon passage. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6
th

 day of May, 2019. 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson  
 

55



Hauler Year January February March April May June July August September October November December Total City Amount

Hauler 

Amount

Richardson 2019  3,945.07 7,588.93    7,624.29 19,158.29     9,431.63       9,726.66       19,158.29    

Edmondson     941.40 1,276.12       104.60 2,322.12       1,143.18       1,178.94       2,322.12      

Unassigned -              -           -                 -                -                -                -                

Total 21,480.41     10,574.81     10,905.60     21,480.41    

Hauler Year January February March April May June July August September October November December Total City Amount

Hauler 

Amount

Richardson 2018  6,321.22 -            10,130.97 10,962.89  8,948.35 7,538.31 4,283.72 3,929.50 19,083.21  3,511.79 2,718.29    12,996.18   90,424.43     44,515.95     45,908.48     90,424.43    

Edmondson       41.84 -                 251.04 251.04 20.23 -           83.68 41.84       8,504.54    49.07       -             2,154.76     11,398.04     5,611.26       5,786.78       11,398.04    

Unassigned -              -           -                 41.84         -           -           23.01       -           -              -           -             -               64.85            64.85            -                64.85           

Total 101,887.32  50,192.05     51,695.27     101,887.32  

Hauler Year January February March April May June July August September October November December Total City Amount

Hauler 

Amount

Richardson 2017 5,662.77     5,808.43 5,713.84       5,849.37    5,921.99 6,942.38 6,448.73 5,385.76 6,031.22    5,187.31 11,334.77  7,549.72     77,836.29     38,318.81     39,517.48     77,836.29    

Edmondson -              -           -                 18.92         364.33     18.92       -           6.93         18.92         189.20     189.20       -               806.42          397.00          409.42          806.42         

Unassigned -              -           -                 -             -           -           -           -           -              -           -             -               -                -                -                -                

Total 78,642.71     38,715.81     39,926.90     78,642.71    

Hauler Year January February March April May June July August September October November December Total City Amount

Hauler 

Amount

Richardson 2016 3,953.64     5,716.92 6,262.45       4,201.52    4,961.25 5,372.78 5,597.74 5,931.79 6,240.44    6,437.84 7,889.30    5,932.64     68,498.31     33,721.72     34,776.59     68,498.31    

WM 870.32        788.96     687.41          1,023.01    927.09     1,097.35 1,173.03 944.74     1,074.03    -           -             -               8,585.94       4,226.86       4,359.08       8,585.94      

Edmondson -              18.92       -                 -             -           -           -           -           -              -           227.04       467.27         713.23          351.12          362.11          713.23         

Unassigned -              -           -                 -             -           -           -           -              -           -             -               -                -                -                -                

Total 77,797.48     38,299.70     39,497.78     77,797.48    

Grand Total 279,807.92  137,782.36  142,025.56  279,807.92  

Richardson 129,929.22  

Edmondson 7,737.25       

WM 4,359.08       

142,025.56  

56



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to rezone property located at 7504 E. 9
th

 Street from 

R-1 Rural residential to R-3 Low-density residential. (PWD-Planning) 

City Planner Mary Beck 

The applicant requests an emergency clause to begin renovations.  An 

emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and 

is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. 

(Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

AGENDA DATE: 05/06/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck, City Planner 

REQUEST: Rezone property located at 7504 E. 9
th

 Street 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes.  Applicant request immediate enactment of the ordinance to begin 

renovations. 

SUMMARY: Please review City Planner’s Memo 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The Planning Commission, City Manager and Staff recommend 

approval. 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, City Planner’s Memo, and Map 

 

57



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. K-

286, AS AMENDED; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, an application to amend the Land Use Plan was filed with the Planning 

Commission of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, requesting that the following land be rezoned 

from R-1 Rural residential to R-3 Low-density residential at 7504 E. 9
th

 Street, more specifically: 

All that certain lot, tract or parcel of land being a part of Section 
Thirty (30), Township Fifteen (15) South, Range Twenty-seven (27) 
West, in Miller County, Arkansas, and being more particularly 
described by metes and bounds as follows:  

BEGINNING at a point which is 40 feet South and 20 feet East of the 
Northwest corner of Section 30, T 15 S, R 27 W, Miller County, 
Arkansas; 

THENCE South 256.5 feet; 

THENCE East 283.67 feet; 

THENCE North 256.5 feet; 

THENCE West 283.61 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and 

containing 1.67 acres of land, more or less;  

 
LESS AND EXCEPT: 
Part of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼ NW 
¼) of Section 30 Township 15 South, Range 27 West, Miler County, 
Arkansas, more particularly described as follows:  
BEGINNING at a point on the Southerly existing right of way line of 
U.S. Highway 82, said point being 18.288 meters right of and 
perpendicular to Centerline Station 79+05.000;  
THENCE South 02 deg. 17’ 12” West a distance of 3.712 meters to a 

point; 

THENCE North 87 deg. 42’ 48” West a distance of 5.248 meters to a 

point on the Easterly existing right of way line of Mosely Road;  

THENCE North 03 deg. 16’ 06” East along said existing right of way 

line a distance of 3.712 meters to a point on the Southerly existing 

right of way line of U.S. Highway 82; 

THENCE South 87 deg. 42’ 48” East along said existing right of way 

line a distance of 5.184 meters to the point of beginning and 

containing 19 square meters more or less. 

 

AND ALSO, LESS AND EXCEPT: 

Part of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼ NW 

¼) of Section 30, Township 15 South, Range 27 West, Miller County, 

Arkansas, more particularly described as follows:  

58



BEGINNING at a point on the southerly existing right of way line of 

U.S. Highway 82, said point being 18.288 meters right of and 

perpendicular to Centerline Station 70+56.000; 

THENCE South 02 deg. 17’ 12” West a distance of 5.212 meters to a 

point; 

THENCE North 87 deg. 42’ 48” West a distance of 18.000 meters to a 

point; 

THENCE North 02 deg. 17’ 12” East a distance of 5.212 meters to a 

point on the Southerly existing right of way line of U.S. Highway 82; 

THENCE South 87 deg. 42’ 48” East along said existing right of way 

line a distance of 18.00 meters to the point of beginning and 

containing 0.01 hectares more or less.  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after public hearing, approved said application 

and recommended that the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, adopt the 

ordinance affecting said rezoning request;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas: 

 SECTION 1.  Ordinance No K-286, as amended, is hereby amended to rezone the above 

described property in the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, from R-1 Rural residential to R-3 Low-

density Residential.  This is solely a rezoning and no other action, conveyance or release of 

interest. 

 SECTION 2.  This ordinance being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health and safety, and, specifically to provide for the further expeditious use of the subject 

property without delay, an emergency is therefore declared to exist; and this ordinance shall be in 

full force and effect upon passage. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 6
th

 day of May, 2019. 

 

_____________________________ 

   Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

59



 

 
 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT STREET 71854-6024 
P.O. BOX 2711 – TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Dr. Kenny Haskin, City Manager 

FROM: Mary L. Beck, City Planner  

DATE:  April 16, 2019 

SUBJECT: Board of Directors Agenda Item for 05-06-2019 meeting – Request by 
Teresa S. Wilson, 7504 E. 9th Street, Texarkana, AR to rezone from R-1 
Rural residential to R-3 Low-density residential. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 

The property is legally described as PT NW ¼, NW ¼, NW ¼, Section 
30, Township 15, Range 27W, Texarkana, Miller County, Arkansas and 
contains 1.67 acres more or less.       
 

REASON FOR REQUEST: 
 
 The property owner and resident of 7504 E. 9th Street wants to add and 

apartment within her home for retirement income.               
  

 
EXISTING LAND USES: 

 

 Site: Residence of applicant 
 North: Residence 
 South:   Residence  
 East: Automotive shop 
 West: Vacant 

 

EXISTING ZONING: 

 Site: R-1 Rural residential 

 North: R-1 Rural residential 

 South: R-1 Rural residential 

 East: R-1 Rural residential 

 West: 
 

R-1 Rural residential 

60



 

AVAILABLE UTILITIES: 

 

 

Municipal Water:  8” in 9th Street (Hwy 82) ROW 

8” South Mosley Road 

   

 Municipal Sanitary Sewer:  

 

Fire hydrant: 

Septic system 

 

Approx. 90’ away on NW corner 
of N. Mosley Road 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 

  
Local Street(s): 

 
None 

   
 Collector Street(s): Mosley Road 
   
 Major Arterial Street (s) 9th Street (Hwy 82) 

 
COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING DEVELOPMENT: 

 The site consists of a single-family 2,506 square feet residence 
occupied by the applicant.  This location is next to a business in a 
residentially zoned district and has more than adequate 
transportation infrastructure.  R-3 Low density zoning is compatible 
with commercial and residential zoning.  No impact is anticipated to 
the surrounding properties.  The addition of another dwelling unit 
within the structure is not seen as being detrimental to the area and 
allows over a half acre of space per family unit.   
 
Current zoning:  
 
The R-1 Rural residential zoning district is defined as follows: 
 
R-1 rural residential district. This is a district for single-family homes 
on large rural lots or acreage, and also provides an area where 
selected agricultural uses can be accommodated. It is a zone that is 
generally applied to fringe areas of the city, and such areas may, over 
time, be converted to higher density residential areas. 
 
Proposed zoning: 
 
R-3 Low density residential is defined as: 
 
R-3 low density residential. This is a residential district to provide for 
a slightly higher population density and a greater diversity of housing 
types, but with basic restrictions similar to the R-1 district. The 
principal use of land is for single-family attached and detached 
structures, two-family, and townhouse developments which may have 
a relatively intense concentration of dwelling units served by large 

61



 

open spaces including common areas and facilities, thereby resulting 
in relatively low gross densities. 
 
The 1988 Long-range Comprehensive Development Plan does not 
cover this area. Typically ;properties located on collector or arterial 
transportation systems are recommended for commercial and higher 
density than rural areas.     

 
CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 

 The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422 1B) requires the 
following - “All plans, recommended ordinances, and regulations shall 
be adopted through the following procedure for adoption of plans and 
regulations: 

 

(1) (A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on 
the plans, ordinances, and regulations proposed under 
this subchapter. 

 
(B) Notice of public hearing shall be published newspaper of 

general circulation in the city, at least one (1) time fifteen 
(15) days prior to the    hearing. 

 

(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, 
and proposed ordinances and regulations may be 
recommended as presented, or in modified form, by a majority 
vote of the entire commission. 

 
(3) Following its adoption of plans and recommendation of 

ordinances and regulations, the commission shall certify 
adopted plans or recommended ordinances and regulations to 
the legislative body of the city for its adoption. 

 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and 

recommended ordinances and regulations to the commission 
for further study or rectification, or, by a majority vote of the 
entire membership, may, by ordinance or resolution, adopt the 
plans and recommended ordinances or regulations submitted 
by the commission.  However, nothing in this subchapter shall 
be construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the 
ordinances and resolutions by a vote of a majority of the 
council. 

 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted plans, 

ordinances, and regulations shall be filed in the office of the 
City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall file, with the county recorder 
of the counties in which territorial jurisdiction is being exercised 
such plans, ordinances, and regulations as pertain to the 
territory beyond the corporate limits. 

 

62



 

The required notice was published in the Sunday, March 24, 2019 
edition of the Texarkana Gazette.  The City notified thirteen (13) 
adjacent property owners within three hundred feet (300) as required 
by the Texarkana, Arkansas Code of Ordinances. 

 

OPPOSITION TO REZONING: 

 None to date 

  
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning Commission met on November 13, 2018, to consider the 
request and make a recommendation.  A motion to approve the item 
was made by Commissioner Thomas and seconded by Vice-
Chairperson Smith. The motion was passed by roll-call vote 5-0 with 2 
absences.:   

 

 
Bertha Dunn, Chairperson 
Adger Smith, Vice-Chairperson 

Yes 
Yes 

Boots Thomas  
Jason Dupree  
George Coker 
Randall Hickerson 
Anderson Neal 

Yes 
Absent 
Yes 
Absent 
Yes 

 

 
BOARD ACTION REQUESTED: 
 

 The Board action requested is as follows: 
 

1. On May 6, 2019, consider adopting an ordinance to rezone 
the property described in the attached ordinance from R-1 
Rural residential to R-3 Low-density residential.     

2. On May 6, 2019 consider adopting an emergency clause to 
enable immediate enactment of the ordinance for the applicant 
to begin renovations. 

Enclosure: Location Map  

 

63



 

 

G!.

G!.

R-1

E 9TH ST

SPRING DR

N
 M

O
S

LE
Y

 R
D

HWY 82

S
M

O
S

LE
Y

R
D

8 inch

8 inch

8 inch

6 inch

8 
in

ch

8 inch

8 inch

7630

7696

7505

7504

7512

8167544

7501

 
 

 

 

REZONING 

PC–2019–002  

Prepared by: 
Planning Division - Public Works Department 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

 

64



65


	Top
	1. Employee Service Awards
	item_1_05062019_ccd_employee service awards.docx

	2. Proclamation
	3. Approval of minutes of the regular meeting April 15, 2019
	05062019_ccd_minutes.docx
	04152019_minutes.docx

	4. Grant Application for East 50th Street Sidewalks
	item_4_05062019_50th Street TAP Grant Application (1).docx
	item_4_05062019_Resolution for 50th Street TAP Grant.docx
	East 50th Street Cost Estimate .pdf
	East 50th Street (from Parkway Dr to Pinecrest Circle Location Map.pdf

	5. Award Construction Contract To Tatum Excavating for U of A Way Street Reconstruction
	04302019 U of A Way Construction Project.docx
	item_5_05062019_Resolution_U of A Way Street Reconstruction.docx
	Bid Tabulation.pdf
	TEC Bid Proposal.pdf
	Sign-in Sheet.pdf
	Recommendation Letter.pdf
	2016-60.pdf

	6. TAPD patrol cars
	05062019_tapd_cars.docx
	item_6_05062019_Resoultion_tapd cars.docx
	05062019_tapd_cars.pdf

	7. Amendment to Solid Waste Ordinance
	item_7_05062019 Amend Solid Waste Ordinance on Vacancies.docx
	item_7_05062019_Ordinance_Solid Waste.docx
	Vacancies 2016-2017.pdf

	8. 05062019_pw_pl_rezoning_wilson
	05062019_pw planning_rezoning 7504 E. 9th_wilson.docx
	item_8_05062019_Ordinance_rezoning.docx
	BOD-Staff memo for rezoning wilson.pdf
	WILSON LOCATION MAP.pdf
	wilson legal description.pdf

	Bottom

